

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Fifty-second Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, January 22, 1991

The Senate convened at 1:00 p.m., with President Omdahl presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rev. Andrea DeGroot-Nesdahl, Evangelical Lutheran Church in America, Bismarck.

The roll was called and all members were present.

A quorum was declared by the President.

MESSAGE to the HOUSE from the SENATE (Marion Houn, Secretary)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2047, SB 2051, SB 2096, SB 2110, SB 2122, SB 2126, SB 2132, SB 2140, SB 2149, SB 2183, SB 2185, SB 2267.

MESSAGE to the SENATE from the HOUSE (Roy Gilbreath, Chief Clerk)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1077, HB 1096, HB 1100, HB 1101, HB 1107, HB 1109, HB 1118, HB 1156, HB 1161, HB 1178, HCR 3018.

CORRECTION and REVISION of the JOURNAL (Sen. Robinson, Chairman)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal has carefully reexamined the Journal of the Sixth Day and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 101, line 45, replace "Sen." with "Sens." and after "Hanson" insert ", David"

SEN. ROBINSON MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

MR. PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Eleventh Day and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 165, line 25, replace "Moore, O. Hanson" with "O. Hanson, Moore"

SEN. ROBINSON MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

SB 2115: Committee on Agriculture (Sen. Kelsh, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 10, remove "The pest must be a potential economic threat to crops"

Page 1, line 11, remove "growing adjacent to the right of way."

Page 1, line 13, replace "ten" with "three"

Page 1, line 15, replace "and" with "or" and after "tenants" insert ", or both,"

Page 1, line 19, remove "The notice must also include the name, address, and"

Page 1, remove lines 20 through 22

Page 2, remove line 1

Page 2, line 2, remove "newspaper."

Page 2, line 3, replace "files a written" with "gives"

Page 2, line 4, replace "with" with "to"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2194: Committee on State and Federal Government (Sen. Keller, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections" and after "54-51-04" insert "and 54-51-09"

Page 1, line 3, after "employees" insert "and the salary or wage of those employees"

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-51-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-51-09. Status of employees of other governments. The following provisions control the status of any employees within the state by ~~virtue of~~ under this chapter:

1. When any unit of government of this state acts as a receiving agency, employees of the sending agency who are assigned under authority of this chapter may be considered to be on detail to the receiving agency.
2. Appointments of persons so assigned may be made without regard to the laws or regulations governing the selection of employees of the receiving agency. ~~Such~~ The person shall be in the unclassified service of the state.
3. Employees who are detailed to the receiving agency may not by virtue of ~~such the~~ detail be considered to be employees thereof, except as provided in subsection 4; ~~nor may they be paid a salary or wage by the receiving agency during the period of their detail.~~ The supervision of the duties of ~~such those~~ employees during the period of detail may be governed by agreement between the sending agency and the receiving agency.
4. Any employee of a sending agency assigned in this state who suffers disability or death as a result of personal injury arising out of and in the course of ~~such the~~ assignment, or sustained in the performance of duties in connection therewith, must be treated as an employee for the purpose of the receiving agency's employee compensation program, ~~as an employee, as defined in such act, who has sustained such injury in the performance of such duty;~~ but may not receive benefits under that act for any period for which ~~he the~~ employee elects to receive similar benefits as an employee under the sending agency's employee compensation program.
5. A receiving agency may with the agreement of the sending agency pay an employee from a sending agency a full or supplemental salary or wage not to exceed the appropriate pay for an equivalent position in the receiving or sending agency."

Renumber accordingly

SB 2241: Committee on State and Federal Government (Sen. Keller, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "he" and insert immediately thereafter "the director"

Page 3, line 5, overstrike "he" and insert immediately thereafter "the director"

Page 3, line 26, overstrike "his" and insert immediately thereafter "the" and after "office" insert "of management and budget"

Page 4, line 8, overstrike "he" and insert immediately thereafter "the treasurer"

Page 4, line 9, overstrike "him" and insert immediately thereafter "the treasurer"

Page 4, line 10, overstrike "him" and insert immediately thereafter "the treasurer"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2261: Committee on Transportation (Sen. Schoenwald, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 10, remove "as follows: (1)"

Page 1, line 12, remove the overstrike over "and" and remove the underscored semicolon

Page 1, line 13, remove "(2) at any time when it is raining, snowing, sleeting, or hailing; and (3)" and overstrike "at" and insert immediately thereafter "during"

Page 1, line 14, remove "visibility is impaired by weather, smoke, fog, or"

Page 1, line 15, remove "other conditions, or when"

Renumber accordingly

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS

SB 2057: SEN. MEYER (Committee on Natural Resources) MOVED that the amendments on SJ page 147 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2082: SEN. MEYER (Committee on Natural Resources) MOVED that the amendments on SJ pages 147-148 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2209: SEN. MEYER (Committee on Natural Resources) MOVED that the amendments on SJ page 148 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2232: SEN. MEYER (Committee on Natural Resources) MOVED that the amendments on SJ page 148 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

MOTIONS

SEN. WOGSLAND MOVED that SB 2358 be returned to the Senate floor from the Committee on State and Federal Government and be rereferred to the Committee on Political Subdivisions, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Sen. Wogsland's motion, SB 2358 was rereferred.

SEN. GRABA MOVED that SB 2401 be returned to the Senate floor from the Committee on State and Federal Government for the purpose of withdrawal, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

SEN. GRABA REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the Senate to withdraw SB 2401. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the President.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2043: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 11 of section 20.1-01-02 and section 20.1-07-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of fur-bearers for game and fish purposes and depredating fur-bearing animals; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 52 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjem; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

NAYS: Moore

SB 2043 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

SB 2171: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 16 of section 43-15-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of "practice of pharmacy".

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 52 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjem; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Meyer

SB 2171 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2195: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-29 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to in-service training for newly elected school board members.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 34 YEAS, 19 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, O.; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krebsbach; Lindaas; Lindgren;

Marks; Mathern; Moore; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Solberg; Stenehjerm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper

NAYS: DeKrey; Evanson; Hanson, E.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Kinnoin; Krauter; Langley; Lips; Maxson; Meyer; Mushik; Mutch; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Wogsland; Yockim

SB 2195 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2203: A BILL for an Act to create and enact three new sections to chapter 14-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to representation in child support matters; to amend and reenact sections 14-09-08.4, 14-09-09.12, 14-09-09.13, 14-09-09.16, 14-09-09.17, 14-09-09.24, subsection 3 of section 14-09-09.25, sections 14-12.1-12, 14-12.1-18, 14-12.1-24, 14-12.1-27, and 14-12.1-38 of the North Dakota Century Code, and section 16 of chapter 148 of the 1989 Session Laws of North Dakota, relating to the establishment and enforcement of child support obligations; and to provide a contingent effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 50 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjerm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

NAYS: Kinnoin; Maxson; O'Connell

SB 2203 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2081: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 9-06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to contracts that must be written to be valid.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 53 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjerm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

SB 2081 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2089: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 26.1-41-13 and section 26.1-41-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the coordination of benefits under the Auto Accident Reparations Act and the equitable allocation of losses between insurance companies under the Auto Accident Reparations Act.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 52 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjøm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Langley

SB 2089 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2138: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 43-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of the practice of chiropractic.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 52 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjøm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Langley

SB 2138 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2159: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 61-28.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to enforcement and penalties under the safe drinking water act; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 61-28.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to enforcement and penalties under the safe drinking water act.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 50 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjøm; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Wogsland; Yockim

NAYS: Mutch; Solberg; Vosper

SB 2159 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2269: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 14-09-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to support for children after majority.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 53 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; O'Connell; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjem; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Tomac; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

SB 2269 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2270: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 14-09-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to an exemption to the requirement of a court order to change the residence of a child.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 49 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bowman; David; DeKrey; Dotzenrod; Evanson; Freborg; Goetz; Graba; Hanson, E.; Hanson, O.; Heigaard; Heinrich; Holmberg; Jerome; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Kinnoin; Krauter; Krebsbach; Langley; Lindaas; Lindgren; Lips; Marks; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Peterson; Redlin; Robinson; Satrom; Schoenwald; Solberg; Stenehjem; Streibel; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Traynor; Vosper; Wogsland; Yockim

NAYS: Ingstad; Moore; O'Connell; Tomac

SB 2270 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

SEN. WOGSLAND MOVED that the Senate be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the Senate be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Ninth order, the Senate be on the Twelfth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Twelfth order, the Senate be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the Senate stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, January 23, 1991, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

SB 2030: Committee on Human Services and Veterans Affairs (Sen. Mathern, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (4 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 3, line 27, after "tissues" insert "excluding corneas, skin, bone, ligaments, or tendons,"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2097: Committee on Human Services and Veterans Affairs (Sen. Mathern, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2097 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

SB 2108: Committee on Education (Sen. Heinrich, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2108 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

SB 2144: Committee on Industry, Business and Labor (Sen. Langley, Chairman) recommends BE PLACED ON THE CALENDAR WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION (8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2144 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

SB 2181: Committee on Human Services and Veterans Affairs (Sen. Mathern, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 8, after "proceeding" insert "that results in the suspension or revocation of a physician's license"

Page 1, line 12, replace "The" with "When applicable, the" and after "be" insert "further"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2318: Committee on Industry, Business and Labor (Sen. Langley, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2318 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

SB 2322: Committee on Industry, Business and Labor (Sen. Langley, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). The proposed amendment was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 9, remove the overstrike over "~~Beginning July 1,~~", after "~~1977~~" insert "1992", remove the overstrike over "~~each~~", and remove "Each"

Renumber accordingly

MESSAGE to the SENATE from the HOUSE (Roy Gilbreath, Chief Clerk)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HCR 3025.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1077: A BILL for an Act to provide a one-time credit against insurance premium tax liability for certain taxpayers; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

HB 1096: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-44 of the North Dakota Century Code, authorizing the selling, leasing, exchanging, or transferring of title of san haven properties by the director of the office of management and budget; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1100: A BILL for an Act to adopt the Uniform Statutory Rule Against Perpetuities; and to repeal sections 47-02-27, 47-02-31, 47-04-11, 47-04-12, and 59-05-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the rule against perpetuities.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary

HB 1101: A BILL for an Act to adopt the Uniform Foreign-Money Claims Act; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

HB 1107: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-06-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the filing of claims for mileage and travel expenses of state officers and employees.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1109: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-14-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to standard vouchers for claims against public funds and disapproval of claims.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1118: A BILL for an Act to repeal chapter 4-12.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the regulation of alfalfa leafcutter bees; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

HB 1156: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-12-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the assets forfeiture fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

HB 1161: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-44.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the date the budget requests for the legislative and judicial branches are submitted.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1178: A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new subsections to section 51-08.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to recovery of damages for antitrust injury by an indirect purchaser.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

The Senate stood adjourned pursuant to Senator Wogsland's motion.

MARION HOUN, Secretary